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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning

          3  everyone.  I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 Joining me are Committee Members

          6  Simcha Felder, Eric Gioia, Melinda Katz, Joe Rivera,

          7  and Council Member Seabrook.

          8                 We have a number of items on the

          9  agenda which I think we will be able to move through

         10  rather quickly.  One, two, three, there are five

         11  items and four of them are actually applications by

         12  the Department of City Planning.

         13                 What I would like to do is call City

         14  Planning up to talk about them.

         15                 Land Use Number 29, The Pelham Bay

         16  Park Rezoning, C060179ZMX.

         17                 Land Use Number 30, The Middle

         18  Village Glendale Re zoning, C060153ZMQ.

         19                 Land Use Number 75, The Westchester

         20  Square Re zoning, C060180ZMX.

         21                 Land Use Number 77, an amendment of

         22  the zoning resolution to The Special West Chelsea

         23  District.

         24                 MS. CAPORE (phonetic): Good morning.

         25  My name is Pomona (phonetic) Capore.  I am the
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          2  Director of the Bronx office of City Planning.  With

          3  me is Julia Regul, our liaison to both 10 and the

          4  project manager on these rezonings.

          5                 The first rezoning we are talking

          6  about is The Pelham Bay rezoning, that we undertook

          7  at the request of Community District 10, and then

          8  District Manager Jimmy Vacca, who is now the council

          9  member for this area, as well.  We worked closely

         10  with the community and the council member on this

         11  rezoning.  And it addresses issues of out of context

         12  development, in a context that is actually more mid-

         13  density mixed with lower density, rather than

         14  straight forward lower density district.

         15                 A new zoning district that we had

         16  created for the Olinville rezoning, is also being

         17  mapped here.  It addresses a concern that a number

         18  of the Eastern Bronx areas share, where we have

         19  large one and two family detached homes, that do not

         20  quite fit the description of our lower density

         21  districts.

         22  With that, I am going to pass it on to Julia Regul

         23  to go into the details.

         24                 MS. REGUL: Good morning.  I hope you

         25  can hear me. I am presenting the Pelham Bay rezoning

                                                            5

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  and the area we are looking at that is in the

          3  northern section of Community Board District 10.

          4  The area is generally bounded by Pelham Bay Parkway

          5  to the north, the Brooklyn Expressway to the east,

          6  Middletown Road to the south, and the Hutchinson

          7  River Parkway to the west.  It is a residential

          8  community, and you can tell by the Land Use color,

          9  the light yellow color is the detached built form,

         10  which is the majority in this neighborhood.  There

         11  are some semi- detached and attached buildings,

         12  which are the light and dark orange colors. And then

         13  along the wider avenues, are the apartment

         14  buildings.  And the commercial corridors here, are

         15  Westchester Avenue, where the elevated number six

         16  train runs, and you can see those in the light pink

         17  color, the commercial uses here.  This area was

         18  actually re zoned in the eighties already, so the

         19  zoning districts here are already pretty defined.

         20                 We have the R- 6 and the R- 7 zoning

         21  districts, which are a little higher zoning

         22  districts along the wider avenues, which allow for

         23  all building types with FAR's that generate in the

         24  R- 6 buildings, between three to twelve stories, and

         25  then the R- 7 up to eighteen story apartment
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          2  buildings, which you can tell by the land use

          3  colors, is actually what is built here, so it is

          4  matching.

          5                 And in the R- 5, it is also allowing

          6  for all building types, with a lower FAR of 1.25,

          7  and here we found the mismatch where you only have

          8  the detached built form, so here we had the problem

          9  of the out of character development.

         10                 So, the first action that we are

         11  proposing, is to re- zone the R- 5 districts in the

         12  interior blocks, and the more residential blocks to

         13  R- 5A, which would limit the build form to one and

         14  two family detached homes, and also lower the FAR a

         15  little bit to 1.1 from a 1.25.  And one point that

         16  is important to make here, is that the parking,

         17  which in the R- 5 is usually 85 percent, if grouped,

         18  becomes one per unit, because parking was a big

         19  issue in the residential districts here.

         20                 The second thing we changed, is the

         21  commercial overlays, before I should have shown that

         22  actually, along Westchester Avenue and Cross Bay

         23  Avenue.  They are like commercial uses, one story

         24  taxpayers, and in the ground floor of the apartment

         25  buildings.  And here they were actually mapped at
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          2  150 feet.  And actually, the uses are only 100 feet

          3  deep.  So, we are mapping them back to 100 and by

          4  that changing it to 100 feet, the parking

          5  requirement was reduced with that.

          6                 We presented the Community Board,

          7  actually voted unanimously in favor of it, and the

          8  Borough President issued a favor of recommendation,

          9  as well as this City Planning Commission was in

         10  favor of it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And this

         12  application lies within Council Member Jimmy Vacca's

         13  district, and he is fully supportive and anxious

         14  that it moves ahead.

         15                 Any questions from committee members?

         16    Sure. Council Member Seabrook.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Again, I

         18  applaud the sense of having a need of preservation.

         19  But I again, will raise the issue as it relates to

         20  the realities of a very segregated City in which we

         21  live in.  And a level of infusing some consciousness

         22  about how best we are going to integrate these

         23  communities, have to be a part of this planning

         24  aspect.  And I have watched a number of down sizing,

         25  and I have seen the communities, and I looked at the
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          2  demographics, and we have to be very careful of this

          3  slippery slope that we are moving into.  And I think

          4  that the level of consciousness that we have to have

          5  about doing these things, because it is one thing

          6  about preserving.

          7                 And as I said before, we have got to

          8  look at what we preserve, as well.  And so I would

          9  hope that the level of consciousness and that

         10  infusion into the equation when we are doing this,

         11  has a sense of responsibility that we have to

         12  integrate this City, and not keep it at the level of

         13  being a more segregated City. We have to be

         14  conscious of that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         16  council member.  We certainly, the Chair certainly

         17  agrees, and I know City Planning does, as well.

         18                 Any other comments, questions from

         19  committee members?  Council Member Felder.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Two general

         21  questions, if that is okay with the Chair.  And I do

         22  not know if one is for the City Planning, but maybe

         23  it is really for the Chair.  Maybe if we can request

         24  for the old people, like myself on the council, who

         25  cannot see these maps, so that when they are doing
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          2  presentations, if it would be okay for City

          3  Planning, in general, not only in the Bronx, to

          4  bring copies of the maps, so that we can see what

          5  you are talking about.  I know you put in a lot of

          6  effort to bring the boards, and that is impressive,

          7  especially for the press.  You know, if they take a

          8  picture, then they see the boards.  It looks like we

          9  are really working.  But, if you really want to

         10  point something out, I cannot see it.  That was one.

         11                 Two, I just do not understand how it

         12  works when, in these charts that we get that are

         13  really good, when it says, for example, on the

         14  Community Board, that it says, approved with

         15  conditions.  Legally, does that have any holding, or

         16  is it just saying that there was a Community Board

         17  meeting?  We really, you know, we would like this to

         18  be approved, but we have three or four things we do

         19  not like, and they put it on the record to cover

         20  themselves, like I do sometimes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The head of the

         22  Land Use Division, Gail Benjamin to respond to that

         23  question.

         24                 MS. BENJAMIN: Thank you.  Council

         25  Member Felder, as you know, the Community Board is
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          2  actually an advisory vote. However, when the

          3  Community Board issues a negative recommendation,

          4  and that is followed by a negative recommendation

          5  from the Borough President who re- iterates their

          6  opposition to the project within five days of the

          7  City Planning vote, it does require us to then take

          8  it.  So, many Community Boards, rather than issuing

          9  a recommendation that, we approve it with the

         10  following conditions, they will issue one that says,

         11  we disapprove it unless the following are met, so

         12  that they would be, the project would be available

         13  for the triple no.  But the conditions are what the

         14  community would like to see.  Many times, we, the

         15  Borough President, the City Planning Commission may

         16  in fact, try and include those conditions, or try

         17  and work on those conditions, within our time

         18  frames.  But it is not mandatory that those

         19  conditions be met.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: So just to re-

         21  cap, so anytime it says on the thing, approved with

         22  conditions, in theory, none of those conditions must

         23  take place.  Is that true?

         24                 MS. BENJAMIN: That is correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay.  And
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          2  then when it says, it was very interesting what you

          3  said, if for example, the Community Board

          4  disapproves it, then the Borough President approves

          5  it, then what happens?

          6                 MS. BENJAMIN: On the items that are

          7  discretionary, to start, although zoning is a

          8  mandatory item.  On the discretionary item, it is

          9  the triple no.  If the Community Board disapproves

         10  it, the Borough President disapproves it, the City

         11  Planning Commission approves it, because we would

         12  not get it if they did not approve it, and then

         13  within five days of the City Planning Commission's

         14  approval, the Borough President reiterates their

         15  disapproval.  It becomes mandatory, we have to hear

         16  it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Very

         18  interesting.  Thank you very much.

         19                 MS. BENJAMIN: You are welcome.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I thought you had

         21  two questions. The demand the question, I think it

         22  is a good, it is a point well taken and if in the

         23  future, we could have copies for the committee

         24  members, I think that would be very helpful.

         25                 We have also been joined by Council
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          2  Member Dilan.

          3                 With that, we will move on since

          4  there are no other questions from committee members,

          5  we will move on to, I guess, Westchester Square.

          6                 MS. CAPORE: Westchester Square is a

          7  little bit to the east of this neighborhood, and has

          8  a very similar context, and had very similar issues.

          9    And our zoning proposal mirrors that of Pelham Bay

         10  and Julia will go into it.

         11                 I also want to say that the

         12  Westchester Square neighborhood is in two councilmen

         13  districts.  Most of it is in Councilman Vacca's

         14  district, and then a portion to the east of it is in

         15  Councilwoman Palma's district.  We have briefed both

         16  of them, and they both expressed support to us, on

         17  this re- zoning.

         18                 MS. REGUL: Okay.  Westchester Square

         19  rezoning is generally bounded by the East Tremont

         20  Avenue to the north, and Westchester Avenue and

         21  Waterbury Avenue to the south, and Castle Hill

         22  Avenue to the east.  Again, the land use colors, the

         23  light yellow colors, the detached build form which

         24  you find predominantly in the interior blocks in the

         25  more narrow streets of this neighborhood, north of
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          2  Westchester Avenue, as well as some semi detached

          3  and attached homes in the light orange and orange.

          4  And then there is a small residential detached

          5  enclave, south of Westchester Avenue.

          6                 Again, the number six train runs

          7  through it along Westchester Avenue, where you find

          8  the commercial uses in the pink color.  And similar

          9  to Pelham Bay, there are larger apartment buildings

         10  around the rezoning area, along the wider avenues,

         11  which are depicted in brown here.

         12                 The zoning here, the R- 6 zoning,

         13  allows for these larger apartment buildings, usually

         14  generating apartment buildings between three to

         15  twelve units, as I said earlier, stories, which we

         16  found along the wider avenue, again.  And the mixed

         17  match that we actually produce the out of character

         18  development that we are trying to address here, we

         19  found in the interior blocks, as well as south of

         20  Westchester Avenue.

         21                 There is also a small little area in

         22  that little residential community down here, a

         23  little portion of it that is zoned M- 1, usually

         24  only allowing for light manufacturing, but the

         25  residential uses have been there, before the zoning
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          2  came into place here.

          3                 So, and again, the same with the

          4  commercial uses, they are one story, taxpayers are

          5  in the ground floor of the apartment buildings, and

          6  the commercial overlays are currently mapped at 150

          7  feet in some areas, but the commercial uses are

          8  really only 100 feet deep.

          9                 So, we are proposing to rezone the

         10  interior blocks in regard to the residential uses.

         11  North of Westchester Avenue we would map the new R-

         12  5A zoning district, limiting the build form to one

         13  and two family detached homes, which that increasing

         14  the parking in the existing zoning in the R- 6, it

         15  would have been 70 percent, if groups, and with the

         16  new R- 5A, it would be one parking space per

         17  dwelling unit.

         18                 The second residential change, zoning

         19  change, would be the R- 6, and then the little

         20  portion of the M- 11, we would map the R- 4A,

         21  because here the floor area ratios were a little

         22  lower, that what we found north of Westchester

         23  Avenue with some smaller homes.  And here, it would

         24  also limit a one and two family detached homes and

         25  actually by mapping the R- 4A, Community Boards 10
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          2  and the Bronx, is a lower density growth management

          3  area, since the Throgs Neck rezoning in 2004, and

          4  this would be subject to the lower density growth

          5  management, which would be amongst other provisions,

          6  which increase the parking to two parking spaces for

          7  one family home, and three parking spaces for a two

          8  family home.

          9                 Another action besides the

         10  residential rezoning, would be the same what we did

         11  in Pelham Bay, cutting back the commercial overlays

         12  to 100 feet, to avoid the encroaching of the

         13  commercial uses into the residential districts, and

         14  with that, the parking for the commercial uses would

         15  be reduced.

         16                 Again, Community Board 10 voted in

         17  favor and the Borough President, as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And to

         19  reemphasize, this is in Council Member Vacca's and

         20  Council Member Palma's district, and both are in

         21  support of the application.

         22                 Any questions, comments from

         23  Committee members? Okay.  Thank you.  The City

         24  Planning presentation will continue with different

         25  players.
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          2                 MS. CARNEY: My name is Debbie Carney

          3  and I am the Deputy Director of the Queens Office of

          4  the Department of City Planning.  On behalf of the

          5  City Planning Director, Amanda Burden, I am very

          6  pleased to be here this morning, in regard to the

          7  Department's efforts to update zoning designations

          8  for more than 160 blocks in two distinct Queens

          9  communities, the communities of Middle Village and

         10  Glendale.

         11                 I am joined by the project manager,

         12  Erica Sellke, to my left, who will present this

         13  project to you.  For this proposal, the Department

         14  has developed a carefully, delineated rezoning

         15  strategy that addresses the concerns of residents in

         16  these communities that recent development trends are

         17  undermining their established character.  The

         18  rezoning proposes a series of lower density and

         19  contextual zones, to more closely matched various

         20  development patterns, of what is primarily one and

         21  two family residences in the area.  This is the

         22  first major update to the area zoning framework

         23  since 1961.

         24                 We recognize that in updating the

         25  areas 45 year old zoning pattern to protect the
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          2  appealing qualities of these neighborhoods, that it

          3  has been a long quest for the area's civic

          4  associations, including the Juniper Park Civic

          5  Association and the Middle Village and Glendale

          6  Property Owners Associations.  It has been the

          7  Department's privilege to have worked closely with

          8  them to shape and refine this proposal.

          9                 Likewise, Councilman Dennis Gallagher

         10  has provide critical leadership for the community,

         11  seeking these zoning changes.  And we are very

         12  pleased with the support received from Community

         13  Board 5, as well as Borough President, Helen

         14  Marshall. We hope that you, too, will support this

         15  well considered rezoning initiative, to protect the

         16  distinctive character of these communities.

         17                 And now, Erica will review the

         18  details of the proposal.

         19                 MS. SELLKE: Good morning.  My name is

         20  Erica Sellke. I do have copies of the proposed

         21  zoning.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: For the

         23  record, there is no Chair in this City Council that

         24  delivers as quickly as Chairman Avella.

         25                 MS. SELLKE: And I believe I have
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          2  eight copies, enough for every council member here.

          3                 We are proposing to rezone 160 blocks

          4  in the neighborhoods of Middle Village and Glendale

          5  in Community District 5, Queens.  The area is

          6  bounded by Juniper Boulevard South to the north,

          7  Myrtle Avenue to the south, Dry Harbor Road and 80th

          8  Street to the east, and 69th Street to the west.

          9  The Long Island Railroad tracks run through the

         10  center of the rezoning area, and Middle Village is

         11  generally thought of as north of the Long Island

         12  Railroad tracks.  And the Glendale neighborhood is

         13  south of the tracks.

         14                 This is a land use map.  The light

         15  yellow is detached one and two family.  The sort of

         16  tannish color is one and two family semi detached,

         17  and the dark orange is one and two family attached.

         18                 So, as you can see, it is

         19  predominantly one and two family residential with

         20  different housing types.

         21                 There are two main commercial

         22  corridors. Metropolitan Avenue is the main

         23  commercial corridor of Middle Village.  And Myrtle

         24  Avenue is the main commercial corridor of Glendale.

         25                 (Not using microphone) Currently, the
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          2  area is zoned R- 4, which is here, north of Valley

          3  Road, and the remainder is zoned R- 5.  There is a

          4  small manufacturing area and we are not touching

          5  that in this proposal.

          6                 R- 4 and R- 5 are both general

          7  residence districts. They allow detached, semi

          8  detached, attached housing and you can have multi

          9  family buildings in these zones, as well.  R- 4 has

         10  a maximum FAR of 0.9 and R- 5 has a maximum FAR of

         11  1.25.  In these general residence districts, you can

         12  build multi family buildings that do not really fit

         13  into the character of the existing build

         14  environment.

         15                 City Planning has come up with this

         16  proposal to replace the general residence districts

         17  with lower density in contextual zoning districts.

         18                 I will start here at the top.  We are

         19  proposing an R- 3X.  It allows only one- and

         20  two-family detached buildings.

         21                 We are also proposing R- 4A, that

         22  again, allows only one- and two-family detached

         23  buildings, but on slightly smaller lots, and with a

         24  slightly higher FAR, that best matches the building

         25  types found there.
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          2                 We are proposing R- 41, throughout

          3  most of the rezoning area. This allows one and two

          4  family detached and semi-detached buildings.

          5                 We are also proposing R- 4B

          6  districts.  This allows all housing types, only one

          7  and two family.  But the way the zoning resolution

          8  is written, it predominantly produces attached one

          9  and two family buildings with a rear loaded parking.

         10    And it also has a maximum height of 24 feet.

         11                 And finally, we are proposing an R-

         12  5B district here along Myrtle Avenue.  And this

         13  allows all housing types.  You can have multi-family

         14  housing.  But with the commercial overlay that is on

         15  Myrtle Avenue, it generally produces a three-story

         16  building with commercial on the first floor and

         17  residential units above, there's a photograph of

         18  that.  It generally produces a building type like

         19  this, which is predominantly found on that portion

         20  of Myrtle Avenue.

         21                 We are not adding any new commercial

         22  overlays, just reducing the depth in some areas from

         23  150 feet to 100 feet, so commercial uses do not

         24  encroach on the inner block residential uses.  And

         25  we are also changing the C- 12 commercial overlays
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          2  to C 13 commercial overlays, and the C- 22

          3  commercial overlays to C- 23 commercial overlays.

          4  And this slightly reduces the parking requirement,

          5  so that any new commercial development better fits

          6  the existing build commercial uses.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Gallagher.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         10  First let me thank you and of course, John Young,

         11  for all the hard work and dedication and the

         12  commitment that you put into this project.

         13  Certainly, it was a bumpy road at times with the

         14  community fighting for what they believe is correct.

         15    And I fighting for what I believe is correct for

         16  the community, as well.  I want to say thank you in

         17  particular, for making sure that the portion of

         18  Metropolitan Avenue was not an R- 6B, and is removed

         19  back to the original R- 5.

         20                 And I also want to thank Amanda

         21  Burden and my colleagues, Council Member Avella and

         22  Katz, for their support in making sure that there

         23  will be an application forth coming shortly, that

         24  will change what we see here is the R- 5 south of

         25  Metropolitan Avenue between Cooper Avenue, to an
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          2  area that we are going to be looking to go R- 41 and

          3  R- 4B.  So, I think that that is what the community

          4  really was looking forward to, and I am glad that

          5  the City Planning Commission is working so closely

          6  with us, to make sure that we can realize that goal.

          7                 You know, when we look at this and we

          8  look at the size of this in conjunction with the

          9  changes that are going to be forth coming in

         10  Maspbeth, it is going to affect a large portion of

         11  my district, and I am so happy because every one of

         12  my colleagues understands what has been going on

         13  throughout our communities, the dangers of over

         14  development have really destroyed the character and

         15  the quality of life of many communities all

         16  throughout the City of New York.  And the City

         17  Planning Commission, with the limited resources that

         18  they have available, has done a tremendous job in

         19  moving forward with these down zoning applications,

         20  that is going to help protect the character of our

         21  communities for a long time to come.

         22                 So, Mr. Chairman, thank you for

         23  allowing me to say these few words.  And to the City

         24  Planning Commission, a job well done on this

         25  application, and we look forward to working very
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          2  closely with you on the next application, hopefully

          3  in a very timely fashion.  And I am glad that we are

          4  going to be supporting this application.  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          6  questions from Council Members?  Council Member

          7  Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Hi.  Do we know

          9  the timing of the FUGAS?

         10                 MS. SELLKE: We are hoping that it

         11  will be certified, maybe the first week in April,

         12  there is a City Planning Commission. And that is

         13  what we are shooting for.  We are hoping it will be

         14  then.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thanks.  Do we

         16  want to go through what the FUCAs are?  Or we

         17  already know what they are- that is fine.  All

         18  right, thank you very much.  First week of April

         19  would be great.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         21  questions, comments? Council Member Felder.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: You mentioned

         23  something at the end about reducing the commercial

         24  overlay from 150 to 100 in two spots.  I saw the one

         25  on the bottom, the R- 5B, like right on Myrtle
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          2  Avenue, what was the second location?

          3                 MS. SELLKE: (Not using the

          4  microphone.)

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: All right, so

          6  I have two questions.  One, in the stretches, I

          7  think this is a City-wide policy that the Department

          8  has in trying to reduce the commercial overlays from

          9  150 to 100 on some of the commercial strips, so the

         10  area on Myrtle Avenue, I see a commercial strip

         11  right now, you know, a long commercial strip, and

         12  the sense of that.  First of all, the area that 50

         13  feet is coming off, are there stores there now?  I

         14  cannot, it is hard for me to tell what exists in

         15  what you are -- I want to know what the effect --

         16  this is -- if Council Member Gallagher is in favor,

         17  I am in favor.  I am just trying to educate myself

         18  on the policy.

         19                 MS. SELLKE: (Not using the

         20  microphone.)

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.

         22                 MS. SELLKE: And to keep commercial

         23  uses from encroaching on those residential uses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Right.  So

         25  then the real question I had is that the other
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          2  spots, you know, that you did this with, can you

          3  explain the policy in those areas?  Why was that

          4  done in those areas?  The long strips, I understand.

          5    You know with long stretches of housing, why was

          6  it done in those other small spots you had on the

          7  other map?

          8                 MS. SELLKE: (Not using the

          9  microphone.)  Generally have commercial uses, the

         10  residential uses.  And on those lots, as well, the

         11  commercial overlay allows buildings to be built

         12  without any side or rear yards, which does not

         13  really fit into the existing character of the

         14  neighborhood.  Where most of the other residential

         15  uses, have the rear yards and the side yards.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yea.  I would

         17  just say that in my own council district, when, and

         18  if, I mean, there have been- this has taken place

         19  already on one strip that is in the proposal in

         20  Brooklyn, which is not your responsibility, but

         21  again that strip is a long strip, that to me makes a

         22  lot more sense than some of the other spots, even

         23  with your good explanation.  I do not understand it.

         24    But that is not for today.  When it is my

         25  district, you will not be here, and I will give
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          2  somebody else a hard time.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council member,

          4  the only thing I can add to this is, you know, for

          5  the rezoning that have gone on in my district, it

          6  has actually been the community that has requested

          7  this of City Planning, because we call it leaching

          8  the commercial into the residential.  And I think a

          9  good explanation is, a commercial building can do

         10  much more damage, you know, can damage the quality

         11  of life, as opposed to the residential housing. So,

         12  for the most part, this has been requested by the

         13  community and City Planning has now been

         14  incorporating it into many of the rezoning that they

         15  have been doing.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes, I am not

         17  debating that. But I think it really goes back to

         18  the discussions that we have had over and over again

         19  about that other bill that I think Councilman

         20  Gennaro put forth, about obligating the City to

         21  notify the property owners.  In other words, I am

         22  very much in favor of protecting the quality of the

         23  neighborhood that exists, but I am very opposed to

         24  the current system of the way things get done where

         25  people, they own property, that is their property.
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          2  You know, we live in a great country.  One of the

          3  great things of the country is that people own

          4  property and they are allowed to do certain things

          5  with it.  And not to wake up a week later and find

          6  out that over the last six, eight months, somebody

          7  decided to change the zoning of the neighborhood.

          8  And again, if the City can notify property owners

          9  that they owe taxes, that they owe water, it is not

         10  a big deal for the City to notify every property

         11  owner by block and lot, that there is a proposal.

         12  And then we will really find out what the community

         13  wants, not necessarily what the people who scream

         14  most, want in the communities.  That is all. I feel

         15  a lot better.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Your point has

         17  always been well taken, and I mentioned to you last

         18  time you brought this up, that I had conversations

         19  with City Planning.  I followed up once again with

         20  Commissioner Amanda Burden about this.  And it

         21  really comes down to, you know, Council Member

         22  Gallagher, you know, praised City Planning with all

         23  the work that they are doing with the limited

         24  resources.  It comes down to a question of funding.

         25  I intend to bring this up during the budget
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          2  negotiations, when we actually sit down with the

          3  DCP.  But I think if we are willing to put the money

          4  in the budget for them to do it, they will do that.

          5  But it really is a significant expense on their

          6  part.

          7                 And I agree with you.  I think it

          8  should be done. But I think we cannot just ask them

          9  to do it, I think we have to be a partner in this,

         10  and perhaps give them the funding to do it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Can I ask you,

         12  I am sorry, can I ask you a question, Mr. Chair?  In

         13  terms of, I mean, first of all let me just say I

         14  completely agree with their colleague from Brooklyn,

         15  Council Member Felder.  And my big concern, and we

         16  saw this two years ago when we rezoned Long Island

         17  City, where someone comes before us and testifies

         18  and says, what is going on?  I just heard about this

         19  yesterday.  I cannot believe this.  I have lived in

         20  the neighborhood for fifty years, and all of the

         21  sudden you are rezoning my house.  And I think there

         22  is a tendency, in government, where the activist

         23  people who scream the loudest are the people who are

         24  heard the most.  Their squeaky wheel gets the oil.

         25  And that is a concern, I think all of us guard
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          2  ourselves against that one percent or two percent,

          3  does not actually always speak for 90 percent.

          4                 And so when we talk about actually

          5  doing these mailings, I actually, I would love to

          6  see an estimate from City Planning, how much this

          7  would cost, because I actually do not think it would

          8  cost that much money.  In the committee I chair,

          9  where we were meeting with the Department of

         10  Investigations, which recently under my request, did

         11  a whistle blower mailing to every City worker.  I

         12  mean, we are talking over a quarter of a million

         13  people. They only asked me for $30 thousand dollars

         14  to do it.  So, I actually do not think it is that

         15  much money.  And the City, in my view, is also

         16  notorious for giving ridiculous estimates for how

         17  much things cost and I do not charge you, the guys

         18  with doing that. But when I wrote a law, the Young

         19  Adult Voter Registration Act, which places a voter

         20  registration card in the hands of every single

         21  graduating elementary school student, the

         22  administration first estimated it would cost two

         23  million dollars to implement the law, which is

         24  pretty laughable when you consider, I mean, we have

         25  the voter registrations cards, we know where the
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          2  kids are, even if you have to buy a truck to drive

          3  these around, it should not cost two million

          4  dollars.  And so, I would just ask that when City

          5  Planning comes forward with their estimate, about

          6  how much this would cost to inform home owners and

          7  property owners that they put a little bit of work

          8  into it to figure out a realistic estimate, since

          9  this is the first time that we would be doing it, I

         10  do not expect it to be perfect.  But let us try to

         11  figure it out.  I would object to the idea that it

         12  would be an exceptional expense.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Ellen, you have

         14  heard this?  If you could take it back to Amanda

         15  because there is, and you know one of the things

         16  that I brought up with the Commissioner, is that

         17  there is legislation pending and why not work

         18  together to get this accomplished, rather than

         19  having to go the legislative route. Point taken.

         20                 Any other comments, questions from

         21  committee members?  Do not punch that button.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I was just

         23  going to say that I am not volunteering for anybody

         24  else.  But if I do mailings to my community, I will

         25  give up one of my mailings if they tell me that the
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          2  only way this can be done is if you pay for it, you

          3  know, me, City Councilman.  I do not mind paying for

          4  it.  I would be very happy to notify people in my

          5  district, or property owners, that I am doing

          6  something.  So, I do not see, even if City Planning

          7  comes back and say that it is X dollars, whatever it

          8  is, if necessary, if they want to make us look good,

          9  you know, if the Mayor and the administration want

         10  to make us look good for a change, it would be

         11  great.  We will do the mailing, you know, I am

         12  willing to do the mailing to my community, if there

         13  is no other way.  Obviously, I would rather not

         14  spend my money if I do not have to.

         15                 No, Councilman Gallagher said the

         16  Chair of the Zoning Franchise Committee should come

         17  out of your budget.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Do we have a

         19  budget here?  All I can tell you is that --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Maybe you can

         21  use some of that lulu (phonetic) money you gave

         22  back.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Oh yea- the money

         24  I gave -- oh --  Just for the record, Council

         25  Member, in the rezoning in my district, I do do a
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          2  complete mailing.  But it does come out of my

          3  budget, and I usually lose one mailing that I could

          4  do otherwise, to do this mailing.  But it is

          5  something that we should be doing, no question.

          6                 Any other comments from committee

          7  members?  With that, we will move on to the next

          8  City Planning presentation.

          9                 Before you start your presentation, I

         10  understand that Council Member Rivera has another

         11  committee meeting that he has to go to, and would

         12  like to take the opportunity at this point, to vote

         13  on the items before us today.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         15  much. Mr. Chairman.  I want to vote aye on all the

         16  items being presented here today, since the council

         17  members and you all support the items. Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         20                 MR. BOVSFURD: Good morning.  My name

         21  is Eric Bovsfurd.  I am the City Planning Manhattan

         22  Office liaison to Community District 4 of Manhattan,

         23  and the project manager for the Special West Chelsea

         24  District rezoning and High Line related actions.

         25                 I am here to present to you twelve
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          2  follow up corrective text amendments that are being

          3  introduced to the Special West Chelsea District

          4  text.  If you recall, the Special West Chelsea

          5  District was approved by the City Council in June of

          6  last year.  And included a rezoning of the area

          7  generally, as you see in the map here, generally

          8  between West 16th Street and West 30th Street,

          9  between 10th and 11th Avenues in the Western Chelsea

         10  neighborhood of Manhattan.  The actions approved,

         11  also involve the site selection and acquisition of

         12  the High Line, elevated rail line for conversion

         13  into a new public open space.

         14                 During the public review process,

         15  there were several, the need for several additional

         16  changes that were identified.  And subsequent to the

         17  public review process, the need for several

         18  technical corrections and administrative

         19  corrections, have been identified.

         20                 Again, there are twelve text

         21  amendments which are proposed and I will describe

         22  the most substantive of those text amendments.

         23                 The first of which is a commitment

         24  which was made during the public review process, to

         25  introduce anti harassment provisions that currently
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          2  apply within the Special Hudson Yards District, just

          3  to the north of this area, to the Special West

          4  Chelsea District.  The proposed text amendment does

          5  extend the anti harassment provision of Hudson Yards

          6  into West Chelsea.

          7                 The next substantive change which is

          8  being proposed, is a modification to certain lots

          9  that are termed constrained lots, adjacent to the

         10  High Line, elevated rail line.  The proposed text

         11  amendment would permit modification via

         12  authorization by the City Planning Commission of

         13  rear yard and minimum distance between legally

         14  required windows and lot lines, for these lots that

         15  are located entirely within 75 feet of the western

         16  edge of the High Line.

         17                 The next change is a modification to

         18  requirements for the creation of High Line access

         19  easements.  These easements are required on certain

         20  public properties, to facilitate future public

         21  access to the High Line.  The modification would

         22  exempt properties that front on West 23rd Street

         23  from the requirements related to High Line access,

         24  because the City is planning to construct a public

         25  access point to the High Line in the City right of
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          2  way on West 23rd Street.

          3                 The final substantive change is

          4  related to parking regulations in sub area H of the

          5  Special West Chelsea District. Sub area H is a C- 64

          6  zoning district.  The entire block is a single

          7  zoning lot, and the eastern portion of the lot

          8  directly east of the High Line, is the planned

          9  location for a new public plaza and major access

         10  point for, public access point, that will allow the

         11  public to access the High Line from the plaza.  The

         12  text change would require the reservation of a

         13  minimum of four feet of planting depth under the

         14  eastern portion of the zoning lot, to allow for

         15  planting of at grade trees within the future public

         16  plaza.  And this is simply to -- if there were a

         17  scenario where an as of right parking garage were

         18  constructed on the block, sub surface, we would like

         19  to have four feet of planting depth with in that

         20  area, for trees.

         21                 The remaining changes are technical

         22  or administrative corrections.  I am happy to answer

         23  any questions about any of them, if you have any.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And once again,

         25  this is a follow up corrective action.  It is within
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          2  Council Member Christine Quinn's district, our

          3  Speaker, and she is in support of the changes.

          4                 Any questions, comments from

          5  committee members? Thank you.

          6                 MR. BOVSFURD: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I will now go

          8  through the public hearing on these items.  First

          9  being the Pelham Bay Park rezoning. I see no one

         10  signed up to speak on this item.  Is that correct?

         11  Seeing no one, I will close the public hearing on

         12  the Pelham Bay Park rezoning.

         13                 On the Westchester Square, which was

         14  the second presentation, I have one person signed up

         15  to speak, Juan Viera.

         16                 MR. VIERA: Yes, My name is Juan

         17  Viera.  I am a resident of Westchester Square

         18  neighborhood.  The idea of protecting the

         19  neighborhood of the Westchester Square area from

         20  developers building out of scale multi family

         21  buildings, it is neglecting the needs of the

         22  residence homeowners, the small lots less than 30

         23  feet wide.  Information provided on the City

         24  Planning website about the neighborhood is formed.

         25  According to the information provided on the
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          2  website, it says that the neighborhood is formed

          3  mainly by large detached housing.  This statement is

          4  misleading people to think that the large detached

          5  housing are on large lots.  As a result of the

          6  resolution, the proposed zoning R 5A, which is based

          7  on 30 feet wide lots with a minimum total side yard

          8  of ten feet.  It falsely represents a good rezoning

          9  solution. The description of the neighborhood fails

         10  to indicate true existing conditions of the

         11  neighborhood.

         12                 This neighborhood of Westchester

         13  Square area is formed mainly by 25 feet wide with

         14  lots which comprise about 70 percent of the total

         15  existing lots on this area.

         16                 Furthermore, the houses use most of

         17  the land with an average total side yard of six

         18  feet, which is a lower value form the required

         19  minimum of ten feet, under the new proposed zoning R

         20  5A.

         21                 Also, to make things worse, the

         22  proposed R- 5A zoning does not allow the use of

         23  narrow lot provisions.  That creates a problem to

         24  the owners of houses on lots less than 30 feet.  If

         25  the owner suffers a complete loss due to any
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          2  unforeseen events, the owner might not be able to

          3  rebuild anything back on the small lots.

          4                 In conclusion, R- 5A is not based on

          5  the existing conditions of the neighborhood which is

          6  formed mainly by 25 feet wide lots and have total

          7  side yards of six.

          8                 I am a resident homeowner of a house

          9  on a 20 feet width lo who refuses to live under very

         10  restrictive zoning.  I want to have the choice and

         11  the ability of rebuilding a reasonable house, in a

         12  case of a complete loss.

         13                 And also, I want to point it out that

         14  I went around the neighborhood asking people if they

         15  knew about the changes, and they were not aware of

         16  the changes.   I tried to explain, but they -- since

         17  this is a very technical situation, it is very hard

         18  to explain people.

         19                 And hopefully you think carefully

         20  about my concerns.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: (Not using

         22  microphone) First of all, I congratulate you, I mean

         23  obviously the documentation that you submitted to

         24  us, took an awful lot of time to put together.  I

         25  think it is unfortunately a shame that you did not
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          2  reach out to us before the public hearing.  Then we

          3  would have had a little more time to review this.

          4  But you bring up a good point, something we

          5  discussed earlier, about the application that is

          6  going on, you know, in this case, as in all of the

          7  cases, we have to rely on surveys. (Not using

          8  microphone.)

          9                 MR. VIERA: Yes, yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Are there any

         11  questions for the speaker?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I just -- have

         13  you contacted -- this is the appropriate forum,

         14  there is no doubt.  I just wanted to know if you

         15  contacted your Council member?

         16                 MR. VIERA: Yes, I spoke to James

         17  Vacca.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, no, no.  You

         19  have to -- we are a little weird here, you have to

         20  turn it off to get it on. Yes, that is right.

         21  Perfect.

         22                 MR. VIERA: Yes, I spoke to James

         23  Vacca, but he said that he cannot help me, and so

         24  that is the reason that I came over here.  I sent

         25  emails to the, to the head of the Council --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The Speaker?

          3                 MR. VIERA: Yeah, the Speaker.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, so you

          5  spoke -- go ahead.

          6                 MR. VIERA: That was the only way that

          7  I knew about this hearing.  So, this is the only

          8  opportunity that I have.  I went for a public

          9  hearing, but there was a public hearing at the same

         10  time with Yankee Stadium.  So, there were a lot of

         11  people there, I could not --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You are talking

         13  about the City Planning hearing?

         14                 MR. VIERA: Yes, I went earlier, but I

         15  could not- there were a lot of people in there, so I

         16  could not --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, but I am

         18  curious.  Your council member knows about your

         19  questions?

         20                 MR. VIERA: Yes, I went explicitly and

         21  asked for help, to ask for his advice and he said

         22  no.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.  I

         24  thank you very much.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Absolutely.  When
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          2  you say he said, no, he just, I do not want you to

          3  give the wrong impression. The council member

          4  probably said -- understood what you were saying,

          5  but had to take into account, the wishes of

          6  everybody in the district.  Because one of the

          7  things, it is very difficult, and I have had this

          8  problem in my own council district with the rezoning

          9  is, it really is a balancing act between the wishes

         10  of the community and the various needs of everybody.

         11    I mean, not everybody agrees.  It is very hard to

         12  change the zoning.  And in effect, say we are going

         13  to do this, we are going to do that, not everybody

         14  is going to be in agreement.  One thing that I think

         15  the point that you have, which is legitimate, and

         16  that is why I am going to call City Planning back,

         17  to answer the question is, when we do zoning

         18  changes, we have to make sure it accurately reflects

         19  the housing stock on the ground.   And in effect,

         20  you are making a key argument, that it does not.

         21  Because we cannot do something if it did not.  City

         22  Planning, I hope City Planning would not recommend

         23  that I do not think they would, and certainly we

         24  would not support it, if it did not.

         25                 MR. VIERA: You see, my case is that
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          2  if -- I have a wood framed house here.  If for any

          3  reason it burns completely, I want to rebuild it.

          4  Can you, I do not know, assure me that I can build

          5  something, I mean something comparable to what I

          6  had?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If your house --

          8  you have got a one family house?

          9                 MR. VIERA: Two family house.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You can rebuild

         11  if it burns down.  You can rebuild.

         12                 MR. VIERA: Completely, if it is a

         13  total, a complete loss?  Because according to the

         14  regulations, I would have to -- if I want to

         15  rebuild, I have to comply with the new zoning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Not for the one

         17  and two family houses.  You are allowed to rebuild

         18  the way you were.

         19                 MR. VIERA: So that is, you are giving

         20  me assurance then, that --  Because I spoke to a

         21  City Planning person, and the person told me, that

         22  if it is a complete loss, I have to follow the 5A

         23  zoning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, I am going

         25  to call City Planning back.  There seems to be a
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          2  difference of opinion here.  It is my impression

          3  that you can.

          4                 MR. VIERA: And also --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And, let me

          6  finish.

          7                 MR. VIERA: Sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have never seen

          9  a situation in all my years of government, where

         10  that happened, and the person was not allowed to

         11  rebuild.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Mr. Viera, is

         13  it?

         14                 MR. VIERA: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you for

         16  coming down here today.  When did you first find out

         17  about the rezoning?

         18                 MR. VIERA: I found out by early

         19  January.  But I did not pay attention.  I started

         20  getting more acquainted with it.  I noticed that it

         21  was too restrictive.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: How did you, I

         23  am sorry.

         24                 MR. VIERA: I think I started to

         25  proceed because I have a vacant lot also.  I started
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          2  to proceed to build a house on the vacant lot.  Then

          3  I went to -- I think I went for a pre screening with

          4  a plan reviewer and he told me that I cannot build

          5  before the new resolution is in effect.  Probably I

          6  will not be able to rebuild anything, because I have

          7  25 feet minus ten feet. I will end up with a 15 feet

          8  barely not a building, house.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Well now, my

         10  concern is, five minutes ago we had this

         11  conversation and I said, you know, my great fear is

         12  some guy comes forward and says I had no idea this

         13  was happening and here he is.  And so, you know,

         14  civic associations play a vital role as we both

         15  know, in the borough we are from particularly, in

         16  Queens, for all of our citizens.  But it is not, it

         17  cannot be the only mechanism by which citizens find

         18  out about what is happening.  And particularly in

         19  the case of new American communities, it may not be,

         20  it certainly is not the appropriate way for them to

         21  be finding out about governmental action.  And even

         22  in all communities, I mean, frankly, folks, most

         23  people are not a member of civic associations or

         24  community boards, because they are worried about

         25  their families, and they are working hard, and they
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          2  are taking care of their everyday life and making

          3  ends meet.  And so, you know, this is in many ways,

          4  the exact, setting aside even the substance of it,

          5  my exact concern of people not being fully informed.

          6    But then on the substance of the issue at hand, I

          7  would love to hear reassurance from City Planning,

          8  and I would love to have reassurance in writing from

          9  City Planning, because I am just watching, you know,

         10  this process, and although I agree with you, Mr.

         11  Chair, I do not know of an instance where that has

         12  happened either.  My great concern is, because I

         13  have heard conflicting advice on it, as well, and I

         14  think that there continues to be confusion about

         15  that.  And I have heard that in my own district, is

         16  that there is a tragedy that happens.  And you get

         17  in this Kafka'esque world where a man says, well no,

         18  I testified before the City Council and I was

         19  assured by the Chairman that this would not be the

         20  case.  And there in a maze for years, trying to

         21  actually rebuild their home.  So I would love to, at

         22  least, have a letter that you could walk in with

         23  saying, no, no, I was assured of this.

         24                 MR. VIERA: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You know, it is
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          2  actually interesting, because I actually raised that

          3  question with City Planning and the Department of

          4  Buildings recently, based upon a rezoning that is

          5  going on in my district.  And I actually have a

          6  letter from, I think Commissioner Burden, if I

          7  remember correctly, that spells out the procedure.

          8  Because one of the things that I raised the

          9  question, not that you could not rebuild, but that

         10  the issue of the documentation that would be

         11  necessary to demonstrate what the existing house

         12  was.  And I am still trying to get clarification of

         13  what documentation a homeowner may need.  Is it

         14  simply that they just do not say, hey this is what I

         15  had?  Or does it have to be on file in which case,

         16  you know the home owner has to make sure that their

         17  plans are up to date?

         18                 So, I mean, there are issues here

         19  that need to be dealt with and I will certainly

         20  follow up on that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.  And

         22  just to finish the point, I mean, this is a

         23  Herculean effort by Mr. Viera.  We have never seen

         24  this in the years we have been here.  But the point

         25  is, is that for any community of New York, the
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          2  person I am worried about, is the person who cannot

          3  hire a lawyer, who cannot navigate the quite complex

          4  process of City Planning and zoning law, who gets a

          5  short end of the stick, because they are also not

          6  showing up at the local civic association meeting or

          7  the community board.  And it is our job to make sure

          8  that the little guy, or little woman, is not then

          9  taken advantage of, by a process that is completely

         10  beyond them.

         11                 And so I just ask that one, very

         12  specifically, we deal with this case, but then that

         13  two, this becomes the actual example that speaks to

         14  a much larger issue.

         15                 Thank you sir, for your time.

         16                 MR. VIERA: Can I just say something

         17  else, Avella? It is just not me, it is about almost

         18  70 percent of the neighborhood that is going to be

         19  affected by this new changes.

         20                 CHAIRMAN AVELLA: Well, when you say

         21  70 percent of the neighborhood, the neighborhood

         22  will be affected by the change. I mean, there is no

         23  question.  Are you saying that 70 percent of the

         24  neighborhood will be non- compliant by the R- 5A?

         25  Or that they based the wrong decision on 70 percent
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          2  of the neighborhood?

          3                 MR. VIERA: Because they live in, they

          4  own a house on a lot less than 30 feet.  Basically

          5  most of us, we are going to be affected by the new

          6  zoning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Seabrook.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         10  very much, Mr. Chairman.  And one of the great,

         11  probably great moments in the Council here is, the

         12  right to be heard.  And citizens afforded that right

         13  in the Constitution, which the beauty of it allows

         14  that.  The right to be heard is so important, due

         15  process.  And I think that we have seen a slightness

         16  of that, in the omnibus way in which the hearing

         17  took place, which was the Yankee Stadium, as it

         18  relates to this issue.  And it was just confusion,

         19  there was no way to have that type of hearing, and

         20  those people did not get the right to be heard.  I

         21  mean, it was, if you had seen what was there, it was

         22  not the best way.  And I think that when we look and

         23  see what we afford people, that is a changing

         24  community, a new emerging group of homeowners who

         25  have come here and set stake.  And the traditional
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          2  groups that have the associations, they are not a

          3  part of, but they are learning that process.  And

          4  so, I think that here it is just an individual who

          5  is trying to do what is right.

          6                 And I have a real problem with moving

          7  this forward, until we actually get some clarity.

          8  And people need to look at the new emerging

          9  community that is there.  It is changed.  The

         10  demographics is changed and they do not understand

         11  the way in which you manipulate and matriculate

         12  through the system.  And I would hope that they came

         13  to the right place, and the opportunity to be heard,

         14  and to have this kind of held over until we really

         15  get an understanding.  Here is an individual who

         16  came and did his civic duty, and that is not yelling

         17  and screaming, but his civic duty. And I think we

         18  owe him that opportunity to be heard, and I have a

         19  real problem voting to move this forward today.

         20  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, two

         22  comments, one, remember that this is not only Jimmy

         23  Vacca's district.  It is also within Council Member

         24  Palma's district.  So I would be interested in

         25  hearing from Council Member Palma on the issue.  But
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          2  also, I have asked staff to put in a phone call to

          3  Council Member Vacca. And I am also curious to hear

          4  what City Planning has to say.

          5                 Thank you, Sir.

          6                 MR. VIERA: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Hang out.  Do not

          8  leave.

          9                 I would like to call City Planning

         10  back to comment.

         11                 MS. CAPORE: Okay.  If I understand

         12  correctly, okay. My name is Pomona Capore.  I am the

         13  Director of City Planning for the Bronx Office.

         14                 I think there were two issues here.

         15  One is what happens if an existing building

         16  completely burns down and the other issue is the

         17  narrow lots that exist in neighborhoods.

         18                 My understanding from zoning

         19  interpretation, and remember, Buildings is

         20  ultimately the one that enforces the zoning, is that

         21  if a building burns down to what they call 75

         22  percent or less, the person has the right to rebuild

         23  to the current building, regardless of the degree of

         24  non- compliance.  And if it goes beyond that, the

         25  person has the option of going to the BSA, but it
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          2  does not remain an as of right thing, and that is --

          3  we can, you know, go back and confirm that.

          4                 The issue of narrow lots, remember

          5  that most of these neighborhoods were built prior to

          6  zoning coming into effect. So, there is a range of

          7  lots here that vary in sizes.  In this particular

          8  instance, the current requirement for a one and two

          9  family home, is actually 40 feet.  We are going down

         10  to 30 feet. So, we are making many more lots

         11  conforming under the zoning we are proposing that

         12  currently exist.

         13                 So, Mr. Viera's situation would not,

         14  we are not creating any hardship for him.  His lot

         15  currently does not comply with the width that would

         16  be required for a one and two family home, and it

         17  would come closer to what we are proposing, but it

         18  would continue to remain non- complying.

         19                 A majority of this area is built up

         20  with these kinds of one and two family homes.  And

         21  the whole purpose of the rezoning is that in the

         22  future, in this area that we have identified as

         23  being predominantly one and two family home area,

         24  this is not affecting the denser periphery that

         25  remains R- 6, in the case of Pelham Bay.  Those
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          2  homes would be complying with the new zoning

          3  requirement.

          4                 If you require one and two family

          5  homes and require parking, they have to have yards.

          6  This is, you know, otherwise it is not a detached

          7  building form.  And there is a minimum yard

          8  requirement in the current R- 5 which is a minimum

          9  of 5 feet and a two, would add up to ten.  The

         10  current zoning would require a minimum of ten.  It

         11  is the minimum yard that goes down, not the overall

         12  requirement.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One second,

         14  Council Member. What I would like to do is lay this

         15  item over, not take the vote on this item.  Because

         16  I have never seen a situation where an individual

         17  actually has done so much homework on a land use

         18  item, and I share the concerns of my colleagues,

         19  that you may not have had, the constituent may not

         20  have had a full opportunity to vest his concerns.

         21                 We can lay this item over to right

         22  before the Land Use Committee meeting on the 16th,

         23  and not affect the schedule or the timetable.

         24  Because I know Council Member Vacca is very

         25  interested in having this move ahead, but I am sure
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          2  he would also like the opportunity to review these

          3  issues, as well.

          4                 So, what I would suggest is, rather

          5  than continue the discussion on this right now is,

          6  you take his proposal back and I would even suggest

          7  that you meet with the individual.

          8                 MS. CAPORE: We have been speaking

          9  with him.  He has been calling.  A lot of the

         10  information he has is actually information that he's

         11  been taught.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And we continue

         13  this discussion and I am sure Council Member Vacca

         14  and Council Member Palma and I would like to know

         15  how those discussions continue.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Just very

         17  quickly.  And you know, the tragic circumstance of

         18  the house burning down, we continue to see that we

         19  are getting conflicting --  I know, but this is kind

         20  of my point, is that, you know there is a fire and I

         21  represent Queens, and there was a fire in Sunnyside

         22  two years ago. An entire block burned down.  I

         23  should hope that that never happens again in this

         24  City, but unfortunately, it in all likelihood, will.

         25  Should that type of tragedy fall on a neighborhood
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          2  that has then been rezoned, from your testimony, I

          3  am hearing that every homeowner on that block to get

          4  back to where they were, would have to go to BSA.

          5                 MS. CAPORE: If it burns down

          6  completely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Right. I am

          8  giving that exact circumstance, which is what

          9  happened in my district in Sunnyside, that it was

         10  burned down, the entire block went up.  And so, to

         11  me, that is an unacceptable situation.  Because, you

         12  know, the neighborhood that I represent and the

         13  neighborhood that some of us represent here, these

         14  are working class folks who cannot go out there and

         15  hire a lawyer to stand before BSA and say listen, I

         16  want to get back to where I was.  So, what we are

         17  really doing is displacing people and not allowing

         18  them to go and live in their neighborhood.  And I do

         19  not know -- believe me, I pray this never happens in

         20  this particular circumstance, and this becomes an

         21  esoteric discussion.  But we cannot bank on that.

         22                 MS. CAPORE: I totally agree with you

         23  but the rezoning is not changing that circumstance.

         24  That could occur today and the homeowner would be in

         25  exactly the same situation.  The rezoning is not
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          2  making the non- compliance any worse.  If anything

          3  for most of the homes, it is making it better.  We

          4  are bringing a lot many more homes into compliance

          5  by going here, rather than the situation now.  I

          6  understand your point.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

          8                 MS. CAPORE: But it is not a function

          9  of this rezoning.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Fair enough,

         11  but maybe we can fix it, certainly not exasperate

         12  it.  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Let me just go

         14  back.  I guess some of my other colleagues have some

         15  additional questions.  My understanding in this

         16  situation was that for BSA, for it to go to BSA, it

         17  would have to completely, I mean not a brick left

         18  standing --

         19                 MS. CAPORE: Absolutely.  That is

         20  exactly what I am saying.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That never

         22  happens.

         23                 MS. CAPORE: That is our

         24  understanding.  We have not known too many

         25  situations where that has happened.  And from
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          2  experience, 75 percent covers, if not 100 percent of

          3  the fire that occurred in the City, a very, very

          4  large percentage of that.  So for the most part, a

          5  homeowner, assuming they have a C of O, and have

          6  plans filed for their current building.  I mean that

          7  is a homeowner's responsibility to have.  If you do

          8  not have that, then there is no basis for going

          9  anywhere, whether to Buildings or to BSA.  That is

         10  correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I was

         12  actually just given a further clarification that the

         13  way the Department of Buildings interprets it, if

         14  there is part of one wall standing, you are fine.

         15  And it has always been the interpretation that I --

         16                 MS. CAPORE: What if there are

         17  foundations that are existing and they can look at

         18  those, they will --  I mean, it is never -- I have

         19  not known of a case where that has not been built. I

         20  am giving you what the zoning says technically.  We

         21  do not interpret it, it is Buildings that interprets

         22  it, and I have not known of any homeowner who had a

         23  home that burned down, and then were told they could

         24  not build.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I do not know who
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          2  was first, but Council Member Palma.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: How much of the

          4  area is in compliance or non- compliance?

          5                 MS. CAPORE: Okay, the way, I mean,

          6  zoning compliance works at a multiple levels.  There

          7  are yards, there are requirements for front yards,

          8  side yard, rear yard.  The way we look at areas when

          9  we rezone them, we do not have building plans for

         10  each one of them, so we are not measuring their

         11  yards.  I cannot tell you how many of the yards do

         12  not comply.  But overall, a preponderance of the

         13  homes here, are one and two family homes that meet

         14  the maximum floor area that we are proposing.  The

         15  areas that are currently built up, the yards that

         16  they have, as long as they are not increasing the

         17  degree of non- compliance they can continue to add

         18  to that, as long as the floor area permits it.

         19                 So, that is the way we analyze this

         20  area.  A lot of these homes are currently non

         21  compliant, and they will continue to remain non

         22  compliant, as far as the yards go.  So, if your yard

         23  is required to be five feet, but it is four feet

         24  right now, but you have the ability to put another

         25  500 square feet, as long as you can accommodate that
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          2  other 500 square feet without making the yard any

          3  worse, you can continue to do it.

          4                 Okay?  So when we are looking at

          5  these areas, we are looking at the building form, it

          6  is one and two family detached homes, and the floor

          7  area ratio, that means the total amount of bulk they

          8  can put on it, is under what the maximum cap is.  If

          9  currently their yards do not comply, they can

         10  continue to not comply, as long as they have the

         11  floor area to add.  Or if they are built to more

         12  than that floor area, and they want to continue to

         13  stay like that, they can.  It is just that they

         14  would not be able to then add to it.

         15                 Most of these homes are built prior

         16  to any of the zoning going into effect.  So, they

         17  were never built in compliance with any of this.  It

         18  is the new buildings that comply with the yards, and

         19  the front and the back requirements.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: And the

         21  application was put by the homeowners or --

         22                 MS. CAPORE: Yes.  The civic

         23  association and the community board, both.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Okay, so the

         25  outreach was done, do you know who the outreach to

                                                            59

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the community -- who the outreach was done by?

          3                 MS. CAPORE: What is the civic

          4  association we worked with?  The Westchester Square

          5  Homeowner's Association and the Community Board 10

          6  where it falls.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: All right.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman. Just a small thing, the issue was not

         11  whether the compliance issue was not the issue of

         12  what I was raising, because you are absolutely

         13  correct.  But I think that what we are looking at is

         14  the fundamental principal of the right to be heard,

         15  and notice given to people to have that opportunity.

         16    And I think that that is crucial to the point that

         17  people have that opportunity and how that notice was

         18  provided, and that is my concern.  And to deal with

         19  these in an omnibus way, by having the hearing, and

         20  then with the Yankee Stadium hearing, was just

         21  unfair to me, to have all of these people around the

         22  stadium issue, and this issue just drowned out and

         23  drummed out.  And they did not get the right to be

         24  heard.  And I think that is important.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  So,
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          2  that is the steps we are going to take.  We are

          3  going to lay the vote over on this particular item.

          4  And if you will follow up to review his proposal,

          5  which again, I have never seen anybody put more

          6  effort into anything.  I am sorry.

          7                 We will reschedule the vote on this

          8  item to 9:45, which is immediately, on the 16th,

          9  which is immediately before the main Land Use

         10  Committee.  Thank you.

         11                 Okay.  Let us go back to where we

         12  were.  If there is no one else signed up to speak on

         13  this item, I will close the public hearing on it.

         14  Seeing no one, the public hearing is closed.       We

         15  then move on to the public hearing for Land Use

         16  number 30, Middle Village Glendale rezoning, and we

         17  have on person signed up to speak, Michael Antic.

         18                 MR. ANTIC: Hello.  My name is Michael

         19  Antic.  I would like to thank the council members

         20  for hearing me, and I also thank the council members

         21  for their concerns with the -- that people are

         22  unaware of the zoning laws that have been changing

         23  in the neighborhood.  I am kind of new at this, so

         24  bear with me.

         25                 I just found out about the zoning
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          2  changes about two weeks ago.  I have been discussing

          3  it with my neighbors.  They are totally unaware of

          4  what is going on.  Now most of them are not opposed.

          5    In fact, I am not opposed to most of these zoning

          6  changes.  My problem is that certain areas of the

          7  neighborhood already have multi family buildings

          8  within these areas.  In the context of the zoning,

          9  for instance, my block has three story buildings on

         10  both sides of the street going down around the

         11  corner, the next block over has the same thing, a

         12  row of houses, and the block over from that also has

         13  the same type of housing.  Now I think the zoning

         14  should allow for those portions of the neighborhood

         15  to have the higher zoning, so that they fall into

         16  where they belong, rather than they all encompassing

         17  R- 4B, which is, in my case, or the R- 41.  For

         18  instance, the R- 4B, since these houses are built as

         19  three stories, they have parking in the front of the

         20  house, and there is no possible way they can have

         21  rear parking on some of these blocks.  Most of the

         22  blocks have alley ways which is why, I think, that

         23  zoning was chosen, but several blocks do not.

         24                 So, basically, my issue is just that

         25  I would like that the City Planning look over the
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          2  area once again, and change the zoning to encompass

          3  those small areas, so that they can be put into the

          4  proper zoning.  And perhaps tabled until the next

          5  time they have the phase two of the zoning.  So,

          6  that other community members can become aware of

          7  this and voice their opinions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, if I may,

          9  because I mentioned to Council Member Gallagher

         10  before he had to leave to go to another committee

         11  meeting, that there was one person signed up to

         12  speak, he has asked that we get him a copy of your

         13  testimony. And in fact, here he is.  I will give him

         14  a second to --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I might,

         16  where do you live?

         17                 MR. ANTIC: I live in Middle Village,

         18  on 77th Place.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: 77th Place and

         20   --

         21                 MR. ANTIC: It is between Penelope and

         22  Fermanville Avenues.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thanks.

         24                 MR. ANTIC: If you look at the map

         25  that they have with the Land Use --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I know where it

          3  is.

          4                 MR. ANTIC: You can see that it says

          5  multi- family and it has been posted as that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Gallagher.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         10  I apologize I was not here to hear your testimony.

         11  We have dual hearings, Youth Services in there, and

         12  I had a meeting with the Minority leader.

         13                 With reference, I was not here to

         14  hear some of your specific complaints, although my

         15  colleague and the Chairman had indicated to me.  I

         16  would not support a laying over of this application,

         17  Mr. Chairman.  The community from the Juniper Park

         18  Civic Association to the Middle Village Property

         19  Owners to most of the community organizations,

         20  Glendale taxpayers, Glendale Property Owners and

         21  Civic Association, Community Board 5 and various

         22  other individuals from throughout these communities

         23  have worked diligently on this project.  It has been

         24  the subject of numerous articles in just about every

         25  single weekly newspaper, and some of the coverage on
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          2  down zoning applications have even been covered over

          3  on the Daily News.  It is something that we have

          4  done our best to get notification out to the

          5  community, and I think overwhelmingly, by the number

          6  of people who were in attendance at some of the

          7  community functions, we know that comparable to

          8  other issues and other meetings, that this one was

          9  well received and well publicized.

         10                 I will mention to you, Sir, that the

         11  City Planning Commission, because there were some

         12  difficulties in this application, some things that I

         13  did not approve upon in the south section of Middle

         14  Village between Metropolitan and Cooper, and between

         15  80th and 73rd Place.  They are immediately

         16  commencing and in the process of commencing a new

         17  application to review some of these issues.  If you

         18  have any specific issues that you would like to be

         19  brought up to the Commission, we will make sure that

         20  we have a public hearing, and we will notify you.

         21  And we will allow you to testify, and I am sure that

         22  the City Planning Commission folks will be glad to

         23  meet with you and discuss any alternatives or any

         24  plans that you have with regards to it.  But after

         25  all the hard work of the 150 volunteers who have
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          2  worked on my committee, and the Community Board, and

          3  the civic and community organizations who have gone

          4  door to door, who have surveyed the properties and

          5  then have gone out again for a second time and

          6  surveyed each and every block, that there was a

          7  discrepancy with City Planning Commission, I think

          8  it would be unwise, at this point, to lay this over.

          9    I think it should be moving forward.  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Any

         12  other questions from committee members?  Thank you,

         13  Sir.

         14                 MR. ANTIC: Well, no, actually I would

         15  like to -- I appreciate the effort that you put into

         16  it.  And I appreciate the effort that the City

         17  Planning has put into it.  In fact, I agree with

         18  most of the zoning changes.  All I am asking is that

         19  there are certain areas that the context of the

         20  housing does not fall into, it is no where near.  If

         21  anybody tries to do an alteration, perhaps even put

         22  in a bay window or a porch of some sort, for

         23  instance, my house is so far out of the zoning, I

         24  could not do a thing.  I probably could not even put

         25  a small porch to walk out into the back yard,
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          2  because of the context of the zoning.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think you made

          4  your point, Sir.  And I know Councilman Gallagher is

          5  going to listen to it and I think you will have --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: And we

          7  would certainly be glad to meet with you, and to

          8  discuss it with you next application that is coming

          9  forward, and meet with the City Planning Commission.

         10  But for all the positives of this application at

         11  this point, and knowing that at any given moment, a

         12  developer can come in and take two one family homes

         13  and destroy them and demolish them and then come up

         14  with another, you know, three or four or maybe even

         15  five or six, three family homes.

         16                 And you know as a resident of our

         17  community, things have changed.  It used to take us

         18  five minutes to drive down Metropolitan Avenue.  Now

         19  it can take half an hour.  You know how schools are

         20  over crowded, District 24 is the single most over

         21  crowded school district in the entire City of New

         22  York.  All the complaints in our community

         23  organizations and civic associations deal with over

         24  development, deal with illegal occupancies.  So, we

         25  cannot -- there is obviously a little give and take
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          2  and a lot of good and a lot of bad, with this

          3  application.

          4                 But in terms of trying to protect the

          5  character of the community that we love so much,

          6  this is the right direction that I believe we have

          7  to go.  And we know that we are going to be coming

          8  back and revisiting this zoning application, so I

          9  encourage you to meet with my office and to meet

         10  with City Planning Commission to see if you have an

         11  individual concern that we can address.

         12                 MR. ANTIC: I also have just one quick

         13  question. What happens to the applications that are

         14  now pending with the Buildings Department that are

         15  now in progress?

         16                      CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What do you

         17  mean by applications that are pending?

         18                 MR. ANTIC: For instance, my Dad.  He

         19  has been working on his house and he took out the

         20  garage and --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You mean how it

         22  lays down in terms of a new zoning application?

         23                 MR. ANTIC: Exactly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It depends on

         25  whether it is a new building or if it is an
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          2  alteration.  For a new building, the foundation has

          3  to be completely in --

          4                 MR. ANTIC: It is an alteration right

          5  now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- Before the day

          7  the City Council votes.  If it is an alteration,

          8  unfortunately there is a discrepancy which City

          9  Planning, and I and the administration are trying to

         10  rectify.  Alterations are held to a higher standard,

         11  which should not be, but that is the way it is in

         12  the zoning, as it exists today.  You must get most

         13  of the alteration done by the day the City Council

         14  votes.

         15                 MR. ANTIC: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We are moving to

         17  change that to make it a fairer system, but that is

         18  the way it currently exists.

         19                 Council Member Katz has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I do not really

         21  have a question, I do not know if you want to let

         22  the witness -- I had a comment on it.  I do not have

         23  a question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But actually,

                                                            69

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  you know what, I do.  It sounds to me like you are

          3  asking for an upzoning of that block.

          4                 MR. ANTIC: No, no, not an upzoning.

          5  I would like to keep it just the way it is.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You are looking

          7  for it to not to be contextual zoning, is that what

          8  you are looking for?

          9                 MR. ANTIC: I think right now, the R-

         10  4 is what the contextual zoning is for that

         11  neighborhood.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: R- 4 is not

         13  contextual zoning, but you are saying that you think

         14  it is an appropriate zoning for what it is now.

         15                 MR. ANTIC: Right, just for that area.

         16    I mean, I am a City assessor.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  Yes or no

         18  is fine.

         19                 MR. ANTIC: No, but I am saying as a

         20  City assessor, I know that on certain maps, I see

         21  five different zonings within the same block.  I do

         22  not understand why such a large swatch of the

         23  neighborhood is all being encompassed within this

         24  one zoning.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Then my only
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          2  comment really is, that with all due respect to what

          3  Councilman Gallagher said, and I think he is trying

          4  to be extremely polite here, and I appreciate that,

          5  and I believe that he is absolutely correct on, we

          6  share a community board, Community Board 5.  There

          7  has been so much publicity on this rezoning for

          8  years, as far as wanting to do this rezoning,

          9  between the newspapers, between his newsletters,

         10  between my newsletters, between everything that we

         11  have done, that at this point, so much work has gone

         12  into this, and I do find it -- it just -- anyone in

         13  this neighborhood that is looking at any type of

         14  zoning in this community, really had the opportunity

         15  at least, before today.

         16                 But with all due respect also, it

         17  sounds like exactly what you want to preserve, is

         18  exactly what the council member and myself and the

         19  Council, is trying to stop.  So, even though I

         20  understand the notice issue, I guess what I am

         21  trying to say, is that on the substance, exactly,

         22  with all due respect to the gentleman, is trying to

         23  advocate for, is exactly what we are trying to stop.

         24

         25                 And so even on the substance, I think
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          2  that this should go forward today.  And I appreciate

          3  the fact that you came down, it is terrific, and we

          4  really need more of that here at the Council, but we

          5  worked too long to make sure that this type of

          6  application goes through, and that these areas are

          7  protected.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          9  council member and thank you, Sir.

         10                 If there is no one else signed up to

         11  speak on this item, I will close the public hearing

         12  on it.  Duly noted.

         13                 We now have public hearing on Land

         14  Use number 77, the Special West Chelsea District and

         15  we have one person who signed up on that item,

         16  Walter Mankoff.

         17                 MR. MANKOFF: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         18  My name is Walter Mankoff.  I am Co- Chair of Board

         19  4's Chelsea Preservation and Planning Committee, and

         20  Chair of the Board while the Chelsea Plan was being

         21  adopted last year.

         22                 I am circulating, I am having

         23  circulated, and would like to include it in the

         24  record, our letter to City Planning dated December

         25  29th, in which we commented on the FUGA text
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          2  amendment. For the most part we support the changes.

          3    They are relatively minor technical changes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please.  I know

          5  this has been a long hearing, and we still have one

          6  other item we have to go through.  So please, if you

          7  have to have conversation, let us take it outside.

          8                 MR. MANKOFF: I will be relatively

          9  brief.  Of the twelve items, Mr. Bovsfurd mentioned,

         10  we were aware of ten prior to the hearing and as I

         11  said, we really have a major problem only with one

         12  of the items on the list.

         13                 In most cases we support either the

         14  text and the substance, or we support the substance,

         15  but have some questions about the precise wording of

         16  the language.  Our written letter of the 29th of

         17  December comments on that.

         18                 One area where we do have a problem

         19  is in the definition of a street wall for narrow

         20  streets, bordering on 11th Avenue.  The proposed

         21  code calls for a 15 foot street wall, and we

         22  consider that totally inappropriate or a minimum 15

         23  foot street wall.  We consider it is only

         24  inappropriate for West Chelsea.  Even a one story

         25  garage in West Chelsea has a higher street wall than
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          2  15 feet.  We were told they were simply borrowed

          3  from another part of the code where it is the

          4  standard height.  But we think it is inappropriate

          5  and that a height of at least 25 feet should be

          6  imposed.  So that is the one area where we differ in

          7  substance from the FUGA amendments.  Otherwise, we

          8  support them in substance.

          9                 I do want to point out, however, that

         10  as part of the passage of the West Chelsea code

         11  changes last June, the Council and the

         12  administration agreed on a number of changes to be

         13  made in the then proposal.  Today's FUGA deals only

         14  with a few very minor technical points.  The big

         15  change is still waiting to come down the road.  And

         16  I just want to remind everybody, it is now nine

         17  months since West Chelsea was passed, and we hope

         18  the Council keeps on top of it, and makes sure that

         19  the rest of the package it was promised, is being

         20  pushed along speedily, and that we have action

         21  fairly soon.

         22                 One final word, I do not want to

         23  remove responsibility from anybody for notifying the

         24  community about zoning actions.  But Board 4 takes

         25  particular pride in how we notify our community.  We
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          2  do it before ULURP starts, we have City Planning

          3  come down and make presentations at public forums

          4  before ULURP starts.  We have our website that

          5  contains all of the information.  We do mailings.

          6  We feel it is our responsibility as a community

          7  board, to make sure our community knows what is

          8  going on.  So, I do not want to take the

          9  responsibility away from anybody else, but we do

         10  take great pride in what we do in this area.  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  I

         13  would just mention that this is a FUGA action.  I

         14  understand from staff there is going to be another

         15  FUGA action, which hopefully will address the bigger

         16  issues, but will also address the street wall

         17  height, that you brought up.

         18                 MR. MANKOFF: Right.  Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  If

         21  there is no one else signed up to speak on this

         22  item, I will close the public hearing and we will

         23  move to the last item, which is Land Use number 76,

         24  the Melrose Hotel Physical Culture Text Amendment

         25  application, submitted by Barbizon Hotel Associates.
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          2

          3                 MS. CARSON: Mr. Chair and members of

          4  the committee, my name is Deirdre Carson.  I am an

          5  attorney with Greenberg Traurig, and I represent

          6  Barbizon Hotel Associates.

          7                 This application before you is for a

          8  modest text change.  It would amend the list of

          9  districts, zoning districts, in which a special

         10  permit may be obtained for a physical culture

         11  establishment by adding to that list, the C- 18X

         12  districts that are located on Lexington Avenue,

         13  between 61st and 98th Streets.  This is a unique

         14  zoning district.  It was created to reflect very

         15  particular, physical conditions related to the width

         16  of Lexington Avenue, and the height of some of the

         17  buildings along it, because it has fairly large

         18  housing stock in many places, and it is yet not

         19  quite as wide as some of our wide avenues are.  So,

         20  it is a unique district.  It is only mapped at that

         21  location.

         22                 The reason for doing this is, that

         23  the former Melrose Hotel, which most of you may know

         24  as the old Barbizon Hotel for Women, is under going

         25  a conversion to residential use.  In the mid 90's,
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          2  Equinox opened a facility, and the first two floors

          3  and in the cellars of the building, that was

          4  permitted as an accessory use to the hotel, that

          5  then existed.  The hotel having closed, the

          6  accessory use status of the physical culture

          7  establishment has been brought into question.  And

          8  the best way we think to remedy that, is to enable

          9  them to do what other physical culture

         10  establishments must do in the City, and that is

         11  obtain a special permit from the Board of Standards

         12  and Appeals.

         13                 So, the zoning text change that is

         14  before you, would add to the list of districts in

         15  which BSA may grant such a special permit, the C-

         16  18X district along Lexington Avenue.  And would also

         17  authorize the granting of such special permits by

         18  the Board of Standards and Appeals.

         19                 We anticipate that the result of this

         20  action would be an application by Equinox to the

         21  Board of Standards and Appeals for a special permit,

         22  to continue operating at the location it now has.

         23                 And you can see the large windows on

         24  the second floor of the Barbizon, are windows into

         25  the existing health club. I would be happy to take
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          2  any questions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It should be

          4  noted that the two community boards involved, both

          5  approved it, and this lies within Council Member

          6  Garodnick's district, and he is in support of the

          7  application.

          8                 Any questions, you look like you had

          9  a question? Council Member Katz.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I am sorry.

         11  This is an application by the Barbizon Hotel, but

         12  you mentioned 20 blocks or 30 blocks.  So, are you

         13  asking for the entire zoning area to be changed to

         14  allow this?  Or just your building?

         15                 MS. CARSON: We are asking that the

         16  text be amended so that any building that is in a C-

         17  18X district, could make such an application, if

         18  they chose to do so.  And so that the Equinox

         19  facility, at our building, will be able to.

         20                 The alternatives were to do something

         21  of this nature.  And by the way, this is nearly

         22  identical to an action that was done in the mid

         23  1990's, with respect to C- 19 districts, which are

         24  mapped along Second and Third Avenues and are also

         25  evident on our map, if you would like to look at
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          2  them.  That was done in the mid 1990's.  This is a

          3  very similar action.  It does not mandate anything,

          4  it just makes it possible.  These districts are

          5  districts in which residential use is the principal

          6  use, but the ground floor of a building may be

          7  commercial.

          8                 And so we would anticipate that in

          9  some larger buildings, particularly newer buildings

         10  toward the northern end of the district, in the

         11  future, there may be such applications.  But there

         12  is no, we did a walk of the neighborhood, we did not

         13  see any sites that appeared to us to be immediately

         14  available for a large health club at this time,

         15  other than ours.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So the

         17  application for the text change is not you.  You are

         18  just here in support of that because -- and then you

         19  are also- so we are doing both things today?

         20                 MS. CARSON: No, all we are doing is

         21  the text change and we are the applicant.  We are

         22  the owner of the property.  We are converting the

         23  hotel, and in agreement with our tenant, Equinox.

         24  We agreed to take the first step, which was to seek

         25  the zoning change and then they will make the
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          2  application for the special permit at the Board of

          3  Standards and Appeals.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  I see two

          5  applications here.  I am trying to figure out -- I

          6  am sorry -- I do not understand.

          7                 MS. CARSON: It is one application

          8  with two text changes.  One to modify the language

          9  of the special permit to add C- 18X to the list --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I got that part.

         11                 MS. CARSON: And the other is to

         12  modify Section 3230, I believe it is, which lists

         13  the uses that may be granted by special permit in

         14  the zoning resolution, in commercial districts.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

         16  Thanks.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         18  questions from committee members or any of my

         19  colleagues that have joined us in the meantime?

         20                 MS. CARSON: I wonder if I could just

         21  make one comment on something that has come up

         22  during -- just one second --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Did you see me

         24  grimace?

         25                 MS. CARSON: As a member of the
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          2  community, I did, I did.  But I was very interested

          3  in something that Council Member Seabrook said and

          4  that is, you know, I remember the days when we used

          5  to have our public hearings on things like Yankee

          6  Stadium over in the Board of Estimate Chamber.  I

          7  worked in this building as an assistant to the Mayor

          8  in the first Koch administration, and there was

          9  something to be said for having a wonderful large

         10  public space for the public to come and be heard,

         11  and the dignity that it afforded the hearing

         12  process, and the ability to be present and to hear

         13  what was going on.  I know that security has changed

         14  our lives, security concerns, but I would say, as a

         15  practitioner in the field, and as a member of the

         16  public, it would be wonderful if we could have a

         17  similar public space for occasions like Yankee

         18  Stadium again.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         20                 If there is no one signed up to speak

         21  on this item, I will close the public hearing.

         22  Seeing no one, this public hearing on that item, is

         23  closed.

         24                 I will now ask Counsel to call the

         25  roll. But before I do that, I assume everybody knows
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          2  that this is Pat's last meeting here, and she has

          3  sat on my right side for the four years and few

          4  months that I have been Chair of this Committee, and

          5  I know she has been with Land Use for a much longer

          6  period of time than that, and I can tell you, it has

          7  been a real asset having you here and I am going to

          8  miss you.  I do not think you can be replaced. I

          9  hope we do find somebody.  But really, you have done

         10  a tremendous job for Land Use Division and for me as

         11  Chair of this Committee, and we know you are going

         12  on to bigger and better things, and we wish you

         13  well.

         14                 Chair recommends approval.  Remember,

         15  on the items we are going to be voting affirmatively

         16  on the Pelham Bay Park rezoning, the Middle Village

         17  Glendale rezoning, the Melrose Hotel Physical

         18  Culture Text Amendment and the Special West Chelsea

         19  District Amendments.  And we will be laying over for

         20  a vote, the Westchester Square rezoning until March

         21  16th at 9:45.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Rivera.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Dilan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Gioia.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.  I

          6  vote yes, but I would just like to say, Mr. Chair,

          7  very briefly, I have actually found this a very

          8  interesting hearing today.  And I think it is

          9  imperative that we do follow up with City Planning,

         10  so as to avoid these issues in the future.  We have,

         11  Council Member Gallagher and I, have a rezoning

         12  coming up for the Woodside Maspbeth area, and I

         13  truly think about it every day, that there is

         14  somebody we are missing whose house is going to be

         15  rezoned.  I have asked City Planning to do a

         16  mailing.  They have told me that they do not have

         17  funds or the capability.  I am trying to work out

         18  with them an appropriate manner to inform folks.

         19  But I would like to codify that, so that it becomes

         20  part of the course of these rezonings. And I thank

         21  you for your time.  And I vote yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I continue to

         24  have a few issues with the text change and creating

         25  a use group and making a private application to be
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          2  able to partake in that use group in that same

          3  application.

          4                 There is something about it.  First

          5  of all, I wish that I would have been briefed by the

          6  applicant before they got here today, but that is a

          7  different issue, because we probably should have

          8  been more on top of it ourselves.  But in general, I

          9  do not like that idea.  I think that there is -- I

         10  would like to study a use group before we start

         11  making the private applications.

         12                 But having said that, and because I

         13  am not really sure whether I dropped the ball or

         14  someone else did, I want to vote yes on the whole

         15  thing.

         16                 And I do want to thank this Committee

         17  for supporting also the Middle Village rezoning.

         18  That used to be my district last year, two years ago

         19  before the rezoning, redistricting, I lost it to

         20  Dennis, which is fine.

         21                 And we have been working on this a

         22  long time, but I would like to congratulate Council

         23  Member Gallagher. He really put a lot of work into

         24  this rezoning over the years. Even when all of it

         25  was not in his district. So I vote aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          3  Seabrook.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

          6  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          7  abstentions and refer to the Full Land Use

          8  Committee.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you

         10  Chairman Avella. I have a brief comment, very brief.

         11                 I just wanted to mention, that today

         12  is probably one of the finest days that I have had

         13  here as an elected official.  Not because Pat is

         14  leaving, because I agree with what you said, but

         15  Juan Viera is my hero.  I mean this -- it is just so

         16   -- I do not know what to say.  It is so

         17  heartwarming to be a part of this body and know that

         18  somebody walked in, as Councilman Seabrook said so

         19  eloquently before, a man walks in off the street,

         20  with something to say, and that we, you know, under

         21  your leadership, listened to this man and did not

         22  just tell him you know, it was nice you had

         23  something to say, sorry I could not hear you before,

         24  we are not going to do anything about it.  And that

         25  under the Chair, we are telling this man we do not
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          2  know if we can correct what has happened.  But at

          3  least, we are going to give it some time.

          4                 So, I just wanted to say to Mr.

          5  Viera, that I hope things can work out for you.  But

          6  one thing you should know, is that we admire you

          7  very much for coming here today and showing us that

          8  there are people out there, that really care and

          9  want to make a difference and on me at least, it

         10  makes the owners the responsibility on an elected

         11  official will have to do better.  And I thank you

         12  personally.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you for

         14  those comments, Council member.  And I certainly

         15  share them with regard to the gentleman.  I do not

         16  think I have ever seen a situation where somebody,

         17  an individual, put so much work into preparing a

         18  response.

         19                 With that, this meeting of the Sub

         20  Committee and Zoning and Franchises is recessed

         21  until March 16th at 9:45.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The 1:00 Bronx,

         23  the 1:00 Yankee Stadium hearing has been postponed.

         24                 There is still a 1:00 hearing. Yankee

         25  Stadium, though, will be heard on March 28th as per
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          2  Council Member Garodnick. He asked me to announce it

          3  here, as well. Thanks.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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